MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, MONDAY, MAY 17TH, 1926 AT 8:00 P.M.

Present: His Worship Mayor Morden Alderman Cartwright Alderman Irwin Alderman Loutet Alderman Tolmie Alderman Townsley

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Minutes of Regular Meeting held May 3rd, copies of which had previously been supplied each of the Aldermen be taken as read and amended on Page 123 of the Council Minute Book by deleting the words "the motion was withdraw and" and that the Minutes as amended be adopted.

The Minutes of Special meeting of Council, held May 10th, 1926, copies of which had previously been supplied each of the members of Council, were taken as read and on motion of Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin, adopted.

Correspondence was received, read and dealt with as follows:

From R.F. Archibald, Returning Officer at the Election on Money Bylaws held on May 5th, being certificate of the result of the Election.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above referred to Certificate of Election be spread on the Minute Book and the report filed.

From the Registrar, County Court, Vancouver, being receipts for the registration of the following Bylaws:

709 First Street Paving Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw;

710 Town Planning Commission Bylaw;

711 Fourth St. (South side) sanitary sewer Construction Bylaw;

712 Fourth St. Sanitary Sewer Construction Bylaw;

713 Gravel Bed Acquisition Bylaw;

714 Street Purchase Bylaw;

715 and 716 Land Sales Bylaws;

717 Cement Sidewalk Cost Bylaw.

Filed.

From W.E. Walkden and Hubert S. Ashton, advising that representatives of Financial interests now in Vancouver are prepared to guarantee a comprehensive development and provide the capital required for the construction of a Bridge across the First Narrows and suggesting that the beneficiaries would be the three Municipalities concerned and that said municipalities should be prepared to guarantee the payment of the insert and sinking fund, requesting to be supplied with a list of lands that are for sale.

Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the Secretary, Board of School Trustees, advising that it is the intention of the School Board to proceed with Ridgeway School extension at the earliest date possible and requesting that the Council authorize such steps as may be necessary to expedite the provision of funds pursuant to term so the Bylaw.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Clerk call for bids for debentures to be issued under the School Extension Loan Bylaw \$54,500; Road Construction Bylaw \$20,000; and Sidewalks Construction \$5,000.00 at the expiration of 30 days from registration of the Bylaws.

From D.G. Tate, C.M.C. North Vancouver, accepting the offer of the City to proceed with the installation of water to Dudley Road, the District to bear one-half the cost of the main along the boundary between the City and District, District's cost not to exceed \$360.00.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that providing the District agrees that the above referred to amount of \$360.00 is a contribution and not as an ownership in the main, that the Engineer be authorized to proceed with the work.

From W.D. McFarland, applying for improvements to the lane in Block 120, D.L. 274.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above application be referred to the Board of Works with power to act.

From the City Engineer, being report on the cost of widening 3rd Street and Keith Road an extra 3 feet from Forbes Avenue to Bewicke Avenue on 3rd Street and on Keith Road from Bewicke to McKay, also an extra 15 feet on Bewicke from 2nd to 3rd, total cost \$6,500.00 in addition to which it will be necessary to arrange for the B.C. Telephone Company to remove 8 poles on Keith Road between 3rd and Fell Avenue.

The Engineer recommended that the above work be carried out. Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the Engineer, being report on the construction of a sanitary sewer with lot connections on 13th Street from St. George's to Lonsdale Avenue as a Local Improvement. Total cost \$4,475.00, City's portion \$1,353.00, owners portion \$3,122.00, 20 annual instalments, special rates per annum 29 cents.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above report be received, adopted, and the necessary notice be published and posted.

From D.G. Tate, C.M.C. North Vancouver, advising that Councillors Bryan and Loughnan were appointed from the District to cooperate with a similar Committee

From the City and West Vancouver to report report on the amalgamation of the Public Utilities, Councillor Marshall being appointed to approach the Government in cooperation with a Committee from the City and West Vancouver with a view to obtaining assistance in hard surfacing the Marine Drive extension. Filed.

The Minutes of the joint meeting of the three Councils on May 6th were read and the question of pamphlets showing roads on the North Shore referred to Alderman Loutet to act with Councillors Loughnan and Watt.

The matter of street signs was also left in the hands of the above Committee. Change of Street lights had previously been referred to the Fire and Light Committee of the City Council to act with a similar Committee of the other Councils.

Hospital accommodation to be dealt with at a joint meeting of two Councils later this evening.

Re amalgamation and the resolution passed at the joint meeting recommending consideration of the question of submitting a referendum at the annual election "are you in favour of the principle of Amalgamation of the three North Shore Municipalities, provided a suitable basis can be arrived at?"

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that provided the Councils of the District of North and West Vancouver agree to submitting the above referendum, that this Council declare itself as being in favour of submitting said referendum.

Alderman Townsley voting against.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that Alderman Loutet and Alderman Townsley be a committee of two from this Council to act with a similar Committee from the other two Councils to bring in a report as to how the different Departments of the Three Municipalities could be coordinated with a view to forming a basis for amalgamation of the Public utilities.

Re joint water scheme for higher levels, the Engineer verbally reported that it is feasible to bring in water from Kennedy Lake to Mosquito Creek, Kennedy Lake having an area of 18 acres and a body of water 100 feet deep.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Engineer prepare and submit a rough estimate of cost of draining Kennedy Lake into the Lynn Creek, also of draining Kennedy Lake into Mosquito Creek.

Re hard surfacing Marine Drive extension.

Alderman Irwin was appointed Mayor Morden to act with a Committee from the Districts of North and West Vancouver in approaching the Government for assistance in hard surfacing Marine Drive extension.

From D.G. Tate, C.M.C. North Vancouver inquiring if the City Council will improve 17th Street westward from the District boundary if the District improves to the East.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Engineer prepare and submit an estimate of cost of improving 17th Street westward from the District boundary.

From the Vancouver Sailors Home, applying for permission to tag on the ferries on May 29th.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above application be granted.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that all parties to whom permission to tag on the ferries is granted, be advised that the Men's Smoking Rooms are reserved from tagging.

From the Amputations Association of the Great War, applying for permission to tag on June 5th.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above application be granted.

From Missions to Seamen Institute, Harbour Lights Guild, applying for permission to tag on the ferries on July 3rd.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that permission be granted.

From D.G. Tate, C.M.C. North Vancouver, enclosing copy of a telegram from D. Donaghy, M.P. Ottawa, to Reeve Fromme, advising that he has written the Harbour Board, requesting them to defer proposed decision increasing rental rates and advising that the joint Councils send Committee to interview the Harbour Board and he would assist to the best of his ability.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that Mayor Morden and Alderman Loutet be appointed a Committee form the City Council to act with similar Committees in approaching the Harbour Board.

From the Building inspector reporting that there is the remains of a two roomed building on Lot 28/132/274-3rd Street East, part of the roof has been removed or blown off, doors and windows removed, recommending that the building be condemned and destroyed or removed.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the above report be received and the Solicitor serve the owner with a notice.

From H.C. Chambers, applying for a sidewalk, full width, in front of his premises 154 Esplanade East.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the above application be granted and the Engineer authorized to proceed with the work.

From T.H. Moffort, 529 – 8th Street East, applying for a crossing at Lot 6/104/550.

Referred to the Board of Works for report.

From the Harbour Commissioners, dated May 8th, re closing of streets in D.L. 272, stating that the Commissioners are unable to entertain the proposal contained in letter from this City dated April 30th, viz, closing of Brooksbank Street and Gladstone provided that the proportion of streets closed be transferred to the City adjoining Kennard Avenue.

The Commissioners would be willing to consider the payment of such streets closed but also point out that if the streets were not closed the City would be called upon to grade and bring up to level the streets in question.

Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From Alex Philip, applying to have the lane adjoining Lot 10, Resub. 4, Block 6, on 19th Street West opened to give access to Girl's School. Referred to the Board of Works for report.

From the City Engineer, submitting cost of filling in tracks on Lonsdale from the Esplanade to 3rd Street, and suggesting that planking would be more suitable at the present time owing to the condition of the ties, estimated cost \$6500.00. Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From W.A. Dewey, applying for a building permit for the erection of another \$1500.00 dwelling on Lot 28/124/271. Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the Secretary, B.P.O.E. No. 43, conveying appreciation for the use of Mahon Park on May 24th, also of grant of \$150.00 for May Day Celebration, and extending to His Worship the Mayor and members of the Council, a very cordial invitation to attend May Day Festivities.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the above invitation be accepted with thanks and as many members of Council as possible, endeavour to be present on that occasion.

From the Vancouver Publicity Bureau, applying for a grant of \$1000.00. Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the Vancouver Morning Star applying for advertising in special edition. Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the City Treasurer, enclosing report of passenger receipts due the Pacific Great Eastern Railway for the month of April \$796.55.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Treasurer be and is hereby authorized to issue cheque in the amount of \$796.55 payable to Pacific Great Eastern Railway passenger receipts for the month of April. From the Horticultural Association, conveying appreciation for usual grants for the year 1926.

Filed.

From the Ratepayers Association, recommending that some action be taken towards gradual removal of all telephone and electric power poles to the lanes where lanes exist, also inquiring why the report and recommendation of the Ferry Superintendent coupled with a reputable analyst's report on the coal samples was not accepted.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the last clause with reference to recommendation of the Ferry Superintendent re coal samples be laid on the table awaiting the report of Mr. Eldridge.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the recommendation re removal of telephone and electric power poles be referred to the Fire and Light Committee.

From J.R. Hicks, $408 - 3^{rd}$ 'street East, applying to have the lane opened at the rear of his house Lot 15/129/274.

Referred to the Board of Works for report.

From Mrs. Mary McGreish, enclosing application for building permit for dwelling on Lot 5, Block 96, D.L. 550, cost of building \$2500.00 stating in letter that there is already a small house on the lot and requesting permission to occupy small house until the new one is completed.

Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the Ferry Superintendent, enclosing report of G.S. Eldridge & Co., on two kinds of coal tendered for new coal contract. The report on Nanaimo slack showed 11,600 BTU's, Comox Pea coal 11,920 BTU's, 2066 lbs. of Nanaimo slack equals 2000 lbs. Comox Pea coal on BTU basis, the Comox sample being superior in regard to steaming properties with the exception of the ash content. Cinder nuisance would be less with Comox than with the Nanaimo.

Moved b Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the recommendation of the Ferry Superintendent with respect to tenders for coal be adopted and that the tender of the Lonsdale Coal and Supply Co. Ltd. for supplying approximately 5000 tons of coal in such quantities as may be required, from May 6th, 1926 to 5th May 1927 at the price of \$4.95 per ton of 2000 lbs. be and is hereby accepted, the City to pay \$5I.95 per ton of 2000 lbs. for coal on Board the ferries in sacks by truck while the scow is away at the mine being loaded.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that a reply be forwarded to the Ratepayers Association that this Council wished to be satisfied that they are getting the best coal before accepting tender. Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that this Council resolve itself into Committee of the Whole to meet the Council of the District of North Vancouver.

Alderman Townsley was appointed Chairman.

IN COMMITTEE

IN COUNCIL

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above report be adopted.

Petition was received from a number of parties interested in lots on First Street west between Lonsdale and Chesterfield, requesting that the Council pass a Bylaw preventing the erection and use or continuance of any laundry on First Street between Lonsdale and Chesterfield Avenues.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that providing the above petition is properly signed, that the Solicitor bring in Bylaw, and that the matter of laundries be referred to the Town Planning Commission. Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Solicitor submit a Bylaw to prohibit laundries in one Block east and west of Lonsdale up to 3rd Street.

Tenders were received for tax sale lands per list dated May 17th, 1926, copies of which were supplied each of the members of Council.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved t hat the applications to purchase tax sale property per list, dated May 17th, containing 32 lots, assessed value \$29,570.00 sale price \$8875.00 be and are hereby accepted and that the necessary Bylaws be prepared.

An offer was submitted by North Vancouver Realty Company to purchase Lot 2/10/265.

This being a ravine lot and not priced, it was moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the offer be not accepted and deposit cheque returned.

Alderman Townsley inquired whether any steps have been taken to submit report on the construction of a sanitary sewer on Keith Road to run easterly from Forbes Avenue to connect with sewer on 13th Street.

Alderman Loutet inquired whether the Ferry Committee has considered installing wash hand basins on the ferries.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the matter of improving lavatory accommodation be referred to the Ferry Committee.

Alderman Irwin inquired re abating sawdust nuisance.

The Solicitor reported that the sawmills have completed about three-fourths of the work of such installation and suggests awaiting results.

Moved by Alderman Loutet seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Solicitor wait another week before taking any proceedings against sawmills re sawdust nuisance.

PLANS FOR APPROVAL

The City Engineer submitted Plan No. 7938 installation of three telephone poles on Forbes Avenue between 3rd and 4th Street, recommending such installation at an offset of 9 feet.

Referred to Committee of the Whole.

Reports and recommendations by the Finance, School, Board of Works, Fire and Light, Ferry, Water, Parks, Health and Police Committees, on due accounts were submitted by the respective Chairmen and read to the meeting and the Treasurer was authorized to pay the accounts to the amounts following:

| Finance | \$426.03 | |
|--------------------|----------------|------------|
| Finance (Election) | 123.00 | |
| Finance | <u>1647.77</u> | \$2,196.80 |
| School | | \$403.63 |
| Board of Works | \$2925.14 | |
| | <u>1856.48</u> | \$4,781.62 |
| Fire & Light | | \$1,947.18 |
| Ferry | \$1019.53 | |
| | <u>3773.24</u> | \$4,792.77 |
| Waterworks | \$790.93 | |
| | <u>132.50</u> | \$923.43 |
| Parks | \$112.22 | |
| | <u>441.66</u> | \$553.88 |
| Parks (Health) | \$307.74 | |
| | <u>96.25</u> | \$403.99 |
| Parks (Police) | | \$353.44 |

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the following report of the Parks Committee be adopted:

The Chairman reported that the Caledonian Society is now satisfied that it has no interest in the two sections of platform at Mahon Park and consequently have withdrawn their claim.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the following report of the Board of Works Committee be adopted:

Communication was received from the Police Commissioners requesting that the dangerous corners throughout the City be brushed out, to avoid accidents, owing to heavy increase in traffic.

RECOMMEND that the above request be complied with and that the Engineer's Department cut the brush out of all dangerous corners throughout the City.

The Engineer submitted communication from A.G. Perry, Local Manager, B.C. Electric Railway Company, stating that to regrade single track proposed on First Street west, in order to make a proper job the track should be lowered from Lonsdale to Chesterfield, cost approximately \$1000.00.

RECOMMEND that the former grade given to the B.C. Electric Railway Company be checked up and that the Engineer again request the B.C. Electric Railway Company for cost of regarding single track on First Street from Lonsdale to Rogers.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the following report of the Ferry Committee be adopted:

Communication was received from Pacific Great Eastern Railway re sale of tickets at the Vancouver wharf, during the Summer Season, suggesting the same terms and conditions as last year viz, \$30.00 per month on and from May 22nd.

RECOMMEND that the same terms and conditions be given Pacific Great Eastern Railway for the sale of tickets as was in effect for the year 1925 viz, \$30.00 per month on and from May 22nd to September 30th.

RECOMMEND that the matter of additional remuneration to Mrs. Neydli be referred to the Relief Department.

Communication was received from Gideon Scott at the Ferries, owing to ill health, requesting leave of absence from June 5th, to June 29th, the work in his absence to be undertaken by Mr. E.G. Excell. RECOMMEND that the above request be granted.

Communication was received from the Superintendent, enclosing copy of letter from Marine Superintendent of C.G.M.M. granting permission to place a concrete anchor under the C.N. dock approximately 60 to 70 feet from the North end of the west side of the C.N. dock on condition that the anchor chains be of heavy cable laid and placed in such a way as not to endanger the safety of vessels using the C.N. dock, the City to hold itself responsible for damage sustained by any craft using the C.N. dock through their coming contact and sustaining or doing damage, also City to place a heavy well driven spread dolphin securely fixed so that any vessel docking at the C.N. dock will be protected from doing damage to the ferry slipway and to any small craft.

The Ferry Superintendent verbally recommended that the above assurance be given.

RECOMMEND that on the Superintendent recommendation that the requested assurance be given the C.G.M.M.

Communication was received from Marpole Towing Company re damage to City scow on May 6th at 10:30 p.m. the Company agreeing to make all repairs so that the scow will be in a good seaworthy condition. RECOMMEND that the Marpole Towing Company be thanked for their assurance of repairs to the North Vancouver Ferry scow and that the Superintendent follow up the matter.

Communication was received from the City Engineer, Vancouver, stating that Pass No. 636 for Emergency truck and driver has been lost and requesting that another pass be furnished.

RECOMMEND that Pass No. 636 be cancelled and a new pass issued for emergency truck and driver, Vancouver.

Communication was received from the District Superintendent of Postal Service, requesting that a member of the Ferry staff be on the wharf to accept delivery at the North Vancouver wharf from the mail courier of mail and sign for same. The Superintendent verbally reported that such an agreement is now being carried out.

RECOMMEND that the above report of the Superintendent be approved and the postal Department notified accordingly.

RECOMMEND that the Superintendent submit report on cost of supplying uniforms for the Ferry crew.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the following report of the Finance Committee be adopted:

Re additional assistance to Mrs. Neydli.

RECOMMEND that the matter of providing transportation for Mrs. Neydli to and from Ferry wharf, be referred tot eh Mayor with power to act and report back.

RECOMMEND that the Clerk be authorized to subscribe for one cloth bound copy of Bragg's Canadian Municipal Directory of Canada 1926 and the Treasurer authorized to issue cheque in payment of same \$5.00.

The Clerk reported that Mrs. Martha Christianson, $648 - 15^{th}$ street West, has received notice that water will be turned off owing to non-payment of water rates.

RECOMMEND that the above matter be referred to the Mayor for report.

The Collector requested instructions re Taxes under Bylaw 687, block 34, D.L. 272.

RECOMMEND that on the advice of the Solicitor that tax notice be forwarded for the full amount of taxes.

The Solicitor requested instructions re delinquent tenants of City property whether the Council wished proceedings taken. RECOMMEND that the Solicitor collect if there is any hope of results.

RECOMMEND that Mr. C.D. Gooch be given notice that the building occupied by him is to be torn down and that the shack be dismantled.

Re Better Housing.

The Treasurer submitted report on six lots which are in arrears. RECOMMEND that in cases where the taxes for the previous year are in arrears or payments are in arrear more than three months, that notice of foreclosure be given unless representations have been made to the Council by such delinquent. RECOMMEND that a grant of \$25.00 be forwarded Western Association for the Blind re providing radios.

RECOMMEND that a door be opened in the basement west side, to permit the janitor obtaining fuel etc., estimated cost \$5.00.

RECOMMEND that £50 debenture, City of North Vancouver, 5% due January 1st 1932 at 98.23 plus accrued interest be purchased from Gillespie, Hart & Todd 5.35 basis.

RECOMMEND that the Treasurer be authorized to secure prices on three year's supply of disbursement warrants and cheques and accept the lowest price from local tenderers.

RECOMMEND that a memo be forwarded the North Vancouver Land and Improvement Company re taxes on property on the water front, being purchased by the Imperial Oil Company.

RECOMMEND that necessary adjustment on account of City Engineer's time during April and Blacksmith's time be made between Board of Works salary payroll and Ferry account, amount \$104.00.

Mayor Morden recommended that the following parties be appointed by resolution, members of the Town Planning Commission under provision of Bylaw No. 710 "Town Planning Commission Bylaw 1926":

| one year |
|-------------|
| one year |
| two years |
| two years |
| three years |
| three years |
| |

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the above recommendation of His Worship Mayor Morden be approved and that the following be appointed members of the Town Planning Commission for the respective term, viz,

| Mr. G.D. Curtis and Mr. H.W. Taylor | one year |
|---------------------------------------|-------------|
| Lt. Col. Dorrell and Mr. E.N. Copping | two years |
| Mr. A. Huggett and Mr. W. Brand Young | three years |

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the matter of zoning and the question of building of houses on a given area of land be referred to the Town Planning Commission for immediate consideration. Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the salary of City Engineer G.S. Hanes be increased to \$240.00 per month as from April 1st.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the appointment of Mr. G.S. Hanes as City Engineer be confirmed.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver School Extraordinary Loan Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 718.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Street Improvement and Construction Loan Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 719.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Sidewalk Construction Loan Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 720.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1926, No. 64" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 721.

Voting for: Aldermen Cartwright, Irwin, Loutet, Townsley, Tolmie and Mayor Morden.

Alderman Irwin was excused from voting.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Lonsdale Avenue Cement Sidewalk (First to Second) Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 722.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Lonsdale Avenue Concrete Sidewalk (First to Third) Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 723.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Lonsdale Avenue Concrete Sidewalk (Third to Eighth) Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 724.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Lonsdale Avenue Concrete Sidewalk (Sixteenth to Twentyfirst) Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 725.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Lonsdale Avenue Concrete Sidewalk (Twenty-first to City Limits) Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 726.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Esplanade (South West) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 727.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Esplanade (Rogers to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 728.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "First Street (Rogers to Lonsdale) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 729.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "First Street (South-Lonsdale to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 730.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Second Street (South-Chesterfield to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 731.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Second Street (North-Chesterfield to Lonsdale) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 732.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Third Street (South-Chesterfield to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 733.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Third Street (North-Chesterfield to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 734.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Eighth Street (Lonsdale to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 735.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twelfth Street (South-Lonsdale to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 736.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fifteenth Street (North-West boundary 2-31-549 to St. Andrew's Avenue) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered, finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal; No. 737.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Bill Boards Regulation Bylaw 1926" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council, subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Agreement for Sale Form Bylaw 1926" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Agreement for Sale Form Bylaw 1926" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Agreement for Sale Form Bylaw 1926" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Agreement for Sale Form Bylaw 1926" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "First Street (North-Lonsdale to Lane W. of A-156-274) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "First Street (North-Lonsdale to Lane W. of A-156-274) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now read a second time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "First Street (North-Lonsdale to Lane W. of A-156-274) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "First Street (North-Lonsdale to Lane W. of A-156-274) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "First Street (North-Rogers to Lane W. of A-156-274) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "First Street (North-Rogers to Lane W. of A-156-274) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "First Street (North-Rogers to Lane W. of A-156-274) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "First Street (North-Rogers to Lane W. of A-156-274) Concrete Sidewalk Initiative Bylaw 1926" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Electrical Inspection Bylaw 1926" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Electrical Inspection Bylaw 1926" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Electrical Inspection Bylaw 1926" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Electrical Inspection Bylaw 1926" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1926 No. 65" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1926 No. 65" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1926 No. 65" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1926 No. 65" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Voting for: Aldermen Cartwright, Irwin, Loutet, Tolmie, Townsley and His Worship Mayor Morden.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Subdivision Plans Approval Bylaw, 1926" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Subdivision Plans Approval Bylaw, 1926" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Subdivision Plans Approval Bylaw, 1926" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Gravel Bed Acquisition Bylaw, 1926" be referred to Committee.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that representation be made to the Union of British Columbia Municipalities that the section of the Municipal Act dealing with the sale of Tax Sale Lands by a threefourths vote of all members of the Council, be amended to read "three-fourths of those qualified to vote".

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the matter of prices on ravine lots be referred to the Finance Committee for a recommendation.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that this Council do now proceed to resolve itself into Committee of the Whole. Alderman Townsley was appointed Chairman.

IN COMMITTEE

IN COUNCIL

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and that the above report of the Committee of the Whole be adopted.

An amendment was offered.

Moved by Alderman Loutet seconded by Alderman Tolmie that the above report of the Committee of the Whole be adopted, excepting the recommendation with respect to the charges to be paid by the echo Towing Company, which should be dealt with separately.

A vote was taken.

For the Amendment: Aldermen Tolmie and Loutet

Against Amendment: Aldermen Irwin, Townsley and Cartwright.

For the Motion: Aldermen Tolmie, Townsley and Cartwright.

Against Motion: Aldermen Tolmie and Loutet.

The Motion was declared carried.

At 12 o'clock midnight, it was moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that this meeting of Council adjourn.

Signed: G.H. Morden, Mayor